
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: June 17, 2021 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 6/22/2021 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

8 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
8a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Fire Tankers and The Related Financing  - Council is 
asked to review and consider approval of the final quotes for the two tankers and the related financing 
plan.  As noted during budget discussions, the two tankers will cost $590,000 and the proposed 
financing covers the entire purchase price with an interest rate of 1.6%, which costs about $48,600 over 
the 10-year life of the lease.  The Tankers proposed for purchase are available under a purchasing 
consortium pricing schedule, which was established via a bidding process conducted by a Texas-based 
consortium.  An order placed now would likely be filled in about October or November 2021.  At the last 
Council meeting, a question was asked whether the purchase could be funded with American Rescue 
Plan funds.  It appears that it may be possible to make the purchase using those funds because some 
latitude is granted in the Interim Final Rule for expenditures related to public safety.  However, it is 
important to note that if that were the desire and the Town Council were to earmark those funds now, 
the Town would likely not be able to purchase the tankers using a direct quote through a purchasing 
consortium as is the current plan.  A purchase of this size is required to be bid using the formal process 
as prescribed in federal regulations, which would probably not have been followed by the consortium.  
Staff is confirming this.  The Fire Department would be tasked with developing a detailed specification 
that while it could name a particular manufacturer, it would also have to allow others that were “equal.” 
The process must be designed to solicit multiple bidders.  As noted, Council is anticipated to review and 
prioritize potential spending under the American Rescue Plan later in the summer. 

8b Police Department General Order Updates regarding Biased Based Profiling and Pursuits – The 
Council is asked to consider and approve minor updates to these two policies to reflect updates in policy 
cross references and changes in forms that are filed.  The changes are briefly described in Chief 
Woessner’s memorandum included in the meeting packet. 

Recommended Action: Approve the updated Policies. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 6/22/2021 
June 17, 2021 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
 
10 New Business 
10a Neighborhood Assistance Act Application, Epoch Arts – The Town Council is asked to consider 
approval of the application for funding assistance under the Neighborhood Assistance Act program from 
Epoch Arts.  The Application seeks funding assistance in the amount of $30,000 to support ongoing energy 
conservation projects at the facility.  The Council will hold a public hearing on this matter at the beginning 
of this meeting.  As a reminder, the CT Neighborhood Assistance Act is a tax credit program designed to 
provide funding for municipal and tax-exempt organizations by providing a business tax credit to 
businesses who make cash contributions to these entities within certain categories.  Epoch Arts has again 
submitted an application seeking support of energy efficiency improvements for HVAC at its facility on 
Skinner Street. 

 Recommended Action:  Approve the application. 
 
10b RFQ for Water System Evaluation and Design – The Council is asked to give approval to a 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) document and authorize its distribution to seek qualified engineering 
firms to assist the Town in determining a course of action, preparing preliminary designs  and providing 
assistance with funding applications for Town water system enhancements and expansions.  Via the RFQ 
process, a qualified engineering firm would be selected, and a detailed scope of services and fee 
agreement would be developed by the Council’s Water subcommittee for presentation to the full 
Council for approval.  It is anticipated that the Water subcommittee will give its final recommendation 
regarding the RFQ, which has also been reviewed by the State Department of Public Health,  after its 
meeting on Tuesday evening.  Funding to support this phase of water system design is available through 
a grant received by the Town in the amount of $250,000 through the Department of Public Health. 
 
 Recommended Action: Approve the RFQ document and authorize its distribution. 
 

 
The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 6/8/2021 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, June 8, 2021 

Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson, Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower and Kevin Reich and Town Manager David Cox 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers and 

via Zoom. 

Adoption of Agenda: 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to adopt the agenda as written. Voted 

(7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to approve the minutes of the Town 

Council Regular Meeting of May 25, 2021 as written.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None  

Presentations 

Presentation on House Bill 6107 and Other Relevant Legislation 

Zoning Official Jeremy DeCarli provided an overview of House Bill 6107 and how it could affect 

the town.  The full bill and memo will be included with the minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s 

Office.   

House Bill 6448 discusses outdoor dining provisions and remote and hybrid meetings.  There is no 

longer a mandate for certain boards and commissions to hold remote or hybrid meetings. Towns 

may hold in-person, remote only or hybrid meetings.  Each board or commission has the discretion 

as to how it plans to conduct its business. 

House Bill 6655 is now focused on eliminating barriers to regionalization. 

Ray Zatorski, Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, commented on the opt out 

provisions for House Bill 6107 for accessory dwelling units and he suggests opting out so the Town 

can retain control.  

Bids & Contracts 

None   

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 

None 

Agenda Item 4a



Town Council Regular Meeting 2 6/8/2021 Minutes 

Continued Business 

Consideration & Possible Action on WPCA Water Budget  

Public Utilities Administrator Scott Clayton presented the second reading of the 2021-2022 WPCA 

Water Budget.  A public hearing was held on June 1 although no members of the public attended.  

There is no recommended increase in rates.  

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to approve the FY 2021-2022 Water 

Budget as presented.  Voted (7-0) 

New Business 

Set Date for Public Hearing for Neighborhood Assistance Act Application 

The CT Neighborhood Assistance Act requires a public hearing prior to applications being 

submitted.  Epoch Arts has again submitted an application seeking support of energy efficiency 

improvements for HVAC at their building on Skinner Street.  Mr. Johnson noted that he is on the 

Board of Directors at Epoch Arts and will not be able to vote on approving the application but can 

vote to schedule the public hearing. 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to set a Public Hearing date of Tuesday, 

June 22, 2021 at 6:30pm for the Neighborhood Assistance Act.  Voted (7-0) 

Town Manager Report 

American Rescue Plan (ARP) Funds 

Mr. Cox noted that the town will receive approximately $3.7 million dollars from the American 

Rescue Plan (ARP) Fund.  He has asked staff to provide recommendations for the funds.  He will 

review the information and then provide Council with some recommendations.  The funds need to 

be obligated by December 2024 and used by December 2026.  It was suggested to have a Town 

Council workshop to discuss the use of the funds. 

Mr. Cox also reported on the rainstorm on Friday, June 4 that washed out portions of the road and 

sidewalk in the Village Center and on White Birch Road.  The storm water systems could not handle 

the quantity of rainwater that fell in such a short time.  Portland Reservoir Road, Wangonk Trail 

and Sears Park beach also had issues that are being addressed.  Mr. Cox gave kudos to the 

Department of Public Works staff that have worked on many projects that performed well during 

the rainy weather. 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of his written report which will be included with the minutes filed 

in the Town Clerk’s Office.  He also noted that the Board of Education has been named a Board of 

Distinction.  Also, canine officer Ardo and his handler Officer Wilson made a traffic stop that 

resulted in finding 25 bags of narcotics in the vehicle. 

Appointments 

None 

Tax Refunds 

None 

Public Remarks 

None 



Town Council Regular Meeting 3 6/8/2021 Minutes 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement  

May 2021 Board and Commission Summary 

Council members received the May 2021 Board and Commission summary. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to adjourn the meeting at 7:34pm.  

Voted (7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



92498379.1

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON OF THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LEASE-PURCHASE FINANCING TO FINANCE 

ACQUISITION OF TWO PIERCE FIRE TANKERS AND RELATED EQUIPMENT 

June 22, 2021 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hampton of the State of Connecticut (the "Town") 

contemplates entering into a lease-purchase agreement to finance the costs of acquisition of a Two 

Pierce Fire Tankers and equipment related thereto (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town has determined that a true and very real need 

exists for the acquisition of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council has taken the necessary steps, including any legal bidding 

requirements, under applicable law to arrange for the acquisition of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that interest on such lease-purchase financing shall be 

exempt from Federal income taxation; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council hereby determines that such a lease-purchase financing is 

in the best interests of Town; and  

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that a payment may be due under the Agreement during the 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 and that the general fund has amounts sufficient for such payment; 

and 

WHEREAS, the lease-purchase financing agreement will contain a non-appropriation 

provision; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has the power, among others, (1) to provide for the due 

execution of contracts of the Town, (2)  to lease real and personal property for the Town, and (3) 

to enter into contracts for any services and to purchase or contract to purchase any supplies, 

materials, equipment and other commodities required by the Town.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON:  

1. That the Town Council award the contract for the acquisition of Two Pierce Fire

Tankers and equipment related thereto to Firematic Supply Company, Inc. using  HGACBuy 

contract number FS12-19 and product code FS19VE01 pricing. 

2. That the Town undertake a lease-purchase financing in a principal amount not to

exceed $590,000, and with an amortization period not to exceed ten (10) years, to finance the 

costs of the Project, the first payment on the lease-purchase financing may be made in the 

2021/22 fiscal year from the general fund.  The Project may include acquisition costs, 

equipment, legal fees, capitalized net interest cost and other financing costs, and other expenses 

related to the Project and its financing.   

Agenda Item 8a



-2- 

92498379.1

3. That the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the Town are authorized to

negotiate, approve, execute and deliver on behalf of the Town any lease-purchase agreement and 

any certificates or documents related to the acquisition or the financing and are authorized to 

determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, prepayment terms, form and other details 

of the lease-purchase agreement; and to perform all other acts and execute all other documents 

which are necessary or appropriate to enter into the lease-purchase agreement, including without 

limitation any agreement with regards to the escrow of the proceeds of the lease-purchase 

agreement. 

4. That the Town Council, acting on behalf of the Town, hereby declares the Town's

official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that costs of the Project 

may be funded initially from available funds of the Town, and that the Town reasonably expects 

to reimburse any such initial funding sources from the proceeds of the lease-purchase financing 

for the Project in an aggregate principal amount anticipated not to exceed $590,000.  The 

Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance 

Director of the Town are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as the Chairman 

or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the 

Town deems necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and 

covenants as the Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or 

the Finance Director of the Town deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued 

exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the lease-purchase agreement authorized 

by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of 

investment earnings to the United States in future years. 

5. That the Town Manager, the Finance Director, and other proper officers and

officials of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to 

complete the Project and to enter into the lease-purchase agreement.  

Approved this 22nd day of June, 2021. 

TOWN COUNCIL 

___________________________________ 

James Brown, Chairperson 

ATTEST 

_________________________________ 

Kelly Bilodeau, Town Clerk



Key Government Finance is pleased to present the following proposal for the transaction described below: 

LESSOR: Key Government Finance, Inc.  

LESSEE: Town of East Hampton 
CT 

EXPIRATION: Expires in 30 days 

FINANCING 
QUOTE: 

Amount Rate Payments Factor Pmts / 
Year 

Payment 
Frequency 

Adv. / Arr. 

$590,000.00 1.60% $33,611.02 .05696782 10yr Semi-annual Arrears 

• see attached sample amortization schedules

LEASE: This is a tax-exempt, municipal government lease with the title to the property passing 
to Lessee. This is a net lease under which, all costs, including insurance, maintenance 
and taxes, are paid by Lessee for the term of the lease.    

APPROVAL: This proposal, until credit approved, serves as a quotation, not a commitment by 
Lessor to provide credit or property.  Lessor acceptance of this Proposal is subject to 
credit; collateral and essential use review and approval by Lessor.  

The interest rates quoted herein is not a locked rate. To lock these rates please 
return a signed copy of this proposal no later than June 23, 2021. Once locked the 
rate will be held until July 23, 2021.  It also assumes that the interest component of 
the Payments is exempt from federal income tax. Lessor will provide a taxable 
financing proposal if it is determined that the financing will not qualify for tax-exempt 
interest rates.  

The financing contemplated by this proposal is subject to the execution and delivery of 
all appropriate documents (in form and substance satisfactory to Lessor), including 
without limitation, to the extent applicable, the Master Lease Agreement, any 
Schedule, financing statements, legal opinion or other documents or agreements 
reasonably required by Lessor. 

Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal.   If you have any questions, please contact me at 
my number or e-mail address below.   If you wish to accept this proposal, please do so by signing below 
and returning this proposal to me via FAX or e-mail.   Upon receipt of this proposal, Lessor will promptly 
begin its credit, collateral and essential use review process. 

Sincerely 

Donna Scibetta 
Donna Scibetta 
Key Government Finance 
Phone:   716-819-5947 
Donna_scibetta@keybank.com 

Proposal Accepted by Lessee: 

 By: 

Title: 

Date: 

June 16, 2021 Key Government Finance, Inc. 
726 Exchange Street Ste900 

Buffalo, NY  14210 

mailto:Donna_scibetta@keybank.com


                 Town of East Hampton CT
sample amortization -

Interest Rate 1.60%

Total Interest Principal Principal 
Date Payment Component Component Balance
7/21/2021 -$  -$  -$  590,000.00$      

2/1/2022 33,611.02$          4,982.22$              28,628.79$            561,371.21$      
8/1/2022 33,611.02$          4,490.97$              29,120.05$            532,251.16$      
2/1/2023 33,611.02$          4,258.01$              29,353.01$            502,898.15$      
8/1/2023 33,611.02$          4,023.19$              29,587.83$            473,310.32$      
2/1/2024 33,611.02$          3,786.48$              29,824.53$            443,485.79$      
8/1/2024 33,611.02$          3,547.89$              30,063.13$            413,422.66$      
2/1/2025 33,611.02$          3,307.38$              30,303.64$            383,119.02$      
8/1/2025 33,611.02$          3,064.95$              30,546.06$            352,572.96$      
2/1/2026 33,611.02$          2,820.58$              30,790.43$            321,782.53$      
8/1/2026 33,611.02$          2,574.26$              31,036.76$            290,745.77$      
2/1/2027 33,611.02$          2,325.97$              31,285.05$            259,460.72$      
8/1/2027 33,611.02$          2,075.69$              31,535.33$            227,925.39$      
2/1/2028 33,611.02$          1,823.40$              31,787.61$            196,137.78$      
8/1/2028 33,611.02$          1,569.10$              32,041.91$            164,095.86$      
2/1/2029 33,611.02$          1,312.77$              32,298.25$            131,797.61$      
8/1/2029 33,611.02$          1,054.38$              32,556.64$            99,240.98$         
2/1/2030 33,611.02$          793.93$                 32,817.09$            66,423.89$         
8/1/2030 33,611.02$          531.39$                 33,079.63$            33,344.26$         
2/1/2031 33,611.02$          266.75$                 33,344.26$            0.00$                   

Total 638,609.31$        48,609.31$            590,000.00$          



PROPOSAL FOR FURNISHING FIRE APPARATUS 

June 16th, 2021

East Hampton Volunteer Fire Department

5 Barton Hill Road

East Hampton CT. 06424 

The undersigned is prepared to deliver for you, upon an order being placed by you, for final acceptance by Firematic 

Supply Company Inc., at its office in Rocky Hill CT., the apparatus and equipment herein named and for the following 

prices: 

One (1) Stock Pierce FXT 2100 Gallon, Commercial Tanker on 2022 

Freightliner M2-106 Cab & Chassis Stock #36442 

Two Hundred Ninety Five Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents using HGACBUY 
Contract # FS12-19, Product Code #FS19VE01

$295,000.00 

Said apparatus and equipment are to be built and shipped in accordance with the specifications hereto attached, 

delays due to strikes, war, or intentional conflict, failures to obtain chassis, materials, or other causes beyond our control 

not preventing, within about 5 - 6 months after receipt of this order and the acceptance there of at our office at Rocky 

Hill CT., and to be delivered to you at the East Hampton Vol. Fire Department. 

The specifications herein contained shall form a part of the final contract, and are subject to changes desired by 

the purchaser, provided such alterations are interlined prior to the acceptance by the company of the order to purchase, 

and provided such alterations do not materially affect the cost of the construction of the apparatus. 

The proposal for fire apparatus conforms with all Federal Department of Transportations (DOT} rules and 

regulations in effect at the time of the bid, and with all National Fire Protections Association (NFPA} Guidelines for 

Automotive Fire Apparatus as published at the time of bid, except as modified by the customer specifications. Any 

increased cost incurred by first part because of future changes in or additions to said DOT or NFPA standards will be 

passed along to the customers as an addition to the price set forth above. 

Unless accepted within 60 days from date, the right is reserved to withdraw this proposition. 

Firematic Supply Company Inc. 

By, AUS!EDE..�:ENTATIVE 
Curt Dowling 

Ar�� 
T SUPPLY COMPANY. INC. Revised: 11/1/2017 



PROPOSAL FOR FURNISHING FIRE APPARATUS 

June 16th, 2021

East Hampton Volunteer Fire Department

5 Barton Hill Road

East Hampton CT. 06424 

The undersigned is prepared to deliver for you, upon an order being placed by you, for final acceptance by Firematic 

Supply Company Inc., at its office in Rocky Hill CT., the apparatus and equipment herein named and for the following 

prices: 

One (1) Stock Pierce FXT 2100 Gallon, Commercial Tanker on 2022 

Freightliner M2-106 Cab & Chassis Stock #36105 

Two Hundred Ninety Five Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents using HGACBUY
Contract #FS12-19, Product Code FS19VE01

$295,000.00 

Said apparatus and equipment are to be built and shipped in accordance with the specifications hereto attached, 

delays due to strikes, war, or intentional conflict, failures to obtain chassis, materials, or other causes beyond our control 

not preventing, within about 5 - 6 months after receipt of this order and the acceptance there of at our office at Rocky 

Hill CT., and to be delivered to you at the East Hampton Vol. Fire Department. 

The specifications herein contained shall form a part of the final contract, and are subject to changes desired by 

the purchaser, provided such alterations are interlined prior to the acceptance by the company of the order to purchase, 

and provided such alterations do not materially affect the cost of the construction of the apparatus. 

The proposal for fire apparatus conforms with all Federal Department of Transportations (DOT} rules and 

regulations in effect at the time of the bid, and with all National Fire Protections Association (NFPA} Guidelines for 

Automotive Fire Apparatus as published at the time of bid, except as modified by the customer specifications. Any 

increased cost incurred by first part because of future changes in or additions to said DOT or NFPA standards will be 

passed along to the customers as an addition to the price set forth above. 

Unless accepted within 60 days from date, the right is reserved to withdraw this proposition. 

Firematic Supply Company Inc. 

By, AUS!EDE..�:ENTATIVE 
Curt Dowling 

Ar�� 
T SUPPLY COMPANY. INC. Revised: 11/1/2017 



Agenda item 8b







































Department of Revenue Services 

State of Connecticut 

(Rev. 02/21) 

Print Form et Form 

Form NAA-01 

2021 Connecticut Neighborhood Assistance Act (NAA) 

Program Proposal 

This form must be completed and submitted to your municipality for approval. All items must be completed 
with as much detail as possible. If additional space is needed, attach additional sheets. Please type or 
print clearly. See attached instructions before completing. Do not submit this form directly to the 
Department of Revenue Services. 

Part I - General Information 

Name of tax exempt organization/municipal agency: -----------------

Epoch Arts, Inc. 

Address: 27 Skinner Street, East Hampton, CT 06424 

Federal Employer Identification Numbe~ _11_3_7_6_01_4_2 _________________ _ 

Program title: Epoch Arts Energy Efficiency Project 

Name of contact person: _E_l_iz_ab_e_th_N_a_m_e_n ____________________ _ 

Telephone number:( _8_6_0)_2_6_7_-2_5_97 _______________________ _ 

Email address: elizabeth@epocharts.org 

Total NAA funding requested ($250 minimum, $150,000 maximum): $ 3_0_,o_o_o_.o_o ______ _ 

Is your organization required to file federal Form 990 or 990EZ, Return of Organization Exempt 
from Income Tax? 

X Yes No 

If Yes, attach a copy of the first page of your most recent return. 

If No, attach a copy of your determination letter from the U.S. Treasury Department, Internal 
Revenue Service. 

Agenda Item 10a



Part II - Program Information 

Check the appropriate description of your program: 

100% credit percentage 

X Energy conservation; or 

Comprehensive college access loan forgiveness (see Conn. Gen. Stat. § 12-635(3)). 

60% credit percentage 

Job training/education for unemployed persons aged 50 or over; 

Job training/education for persons with physical disabilities; 

Program serving low-income persons; 

Child care services; 

Establishment of a child day care facility; 

Open space acquisition fund; or 

Other (specify):-------------------------

Description of program: 
Epoch Arts runs community Arts and Education programs out of a redeveloped Brownsfield building. Our 
·programs run year round and the building is used by many people in the community seven days per week. 
This project will update several spaces in our building with new, energy efficient heating and cooling solutions. 
The resulting upgrades will provide Epoch Arts with energy efficient mechanical systems in the newly 
weatherized spaces of our historic building. 

Need for program:----------------------------~~~----------------------------------------~~~~~~~----~~-
We welcome over 2000 members of the local region each year into our historic brick building. While the 
-building is a significant historic feature of the town, it lacks the energy standards of modern construction. This 
grant will allow us to renovate the building prioritizing energy efficiency, and setting Epoch Arts on track for a 
·future with reduced energy costs and environmental impacts. 

Neighborhood area to be served: 
East Hampton, CT and Middlesex County 

Plan to implement the program: 
The Epoch Arts Energy Efficiency Project has been planned through consultation with local architects, 
·engineers and contractors. The Neighborhood Assistance Act will allow us to secure funding through our 
business partnerships. Other build out costs will be covered by private donations, matching and private grants, 
·and in kind donations. Community support and input will ensure we meet our project goals. We continue to 
form relationships with town agencies and civic organizations to offer positive, productive opportunities for our 
·community. Volunteers, artists, and staff are in place to begin this project. 

Form NAA-01 (Rev. 02/21) Page 2 of 5 



Timetable: 

Program start date: _O_c_to_b_e_r _15_th_20_2_1 _______ _ 

Program completion date: September 15th 2023 

The program completion date must not be more than two years from the program start date. A certified 
post-project review is due to the municipality overseeing implementation no later than three months 
after program completion date for all projects receiving $25,000 or more in NAA funding. 

Part Ill - Financial Information 

Program Budget: 

Complete in full. Expenditures must equal or exceed total funding. 

Sources of Revenue: 

NAA funds requested 

Other funding sources - itemized sources: 

a) Corporate Initiative Giving 

b) Private Donations 

c) _________________________________ ~ 

d) 

Total Funding: 

Proposed Program Expenditures: 

Direct operating expenses - itemized description: 

a) HVAC 

b) 
c) ______________________________________ ~ 

d) 

Administrative expenses - itemized description: 

a) 

b) 
c) ____________________________________ _ 

d) 

Total Proposed Expenditures: 

Form NM-01 (Rev. 02/21) 

$30,000.00 

$5,000.00 

$5,000.00 

$30,000.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$40,000.00 

Page 3 of 5 



Part IV - Municipal Information 

To be completed by the municipal agency overseeing implementation of the program 

Name of municipal agency overseeing implementation of the program: _________ _ 

Town of East Hampton 

Mailing address: -----------------------------
1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT 06424 

Name of municipal liaison: David E. Cox, Town Manager 

Telephone number: 860-267 -4468 

Fax number: 860-267 -1027 

Email address:· dcox@easthamptonct.gov 

Post-Project Review 

Is a post-project review required for this proposal? 

lZJYes 

If Yes, date post-project review due: 

12/15/2023 

Date 

Form NAA-01 (Rev. 02/21) Page 4 of 5 



©@lPW 
OMB No. 1545-0047 

Form 990-EZ 
Short Form 

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax ~~ri1120 
Under section 501 (c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

• Do not enter social security numbers on this form, as It may be made public. 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue 8e1vice • Go to www.irs.gov/Fonn990EZ for Instructions and the latest information. 

Open ;to Pt,ablic 
J~n 

A For the 2020 calendar year, or tax year beginning , 2020, and ending • 20 
B Cl1Pc h '' i\pplicablt> C N;1 rn.' c)( t)!\J<WiZ<1lio:1 D Employer Identification number 

D Addie~s chJl1\)e Epoch Alt 8 I Inc. 
D "'"'' "'"°'' N,;,,,c;.;; •eci;!;;;et (.;, P:O ''°'ti ,n,ii tiOOtd.if;,,,d tOitr•Ot •dd'O,OJ-· · I Aobml•iifti- E Tot,.phoco '""'b" 

11-3760142 

0 lnitiB' reh1•n- J · 7 
0 Fina::Nurn':.sm1in,,ted 2/ ~~-ll111Cl~- Street .a.__8_6_0_3_6_5_0_3_3 ______ _ 
O A.ni .. ncea return City o: town. st:it1~ or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code F Group [.<emption 

Number ._ 0 '-rr1i..:at1,v-.pendi11,:i East Hampton, CT 06424 

G Acco<J1·.ting Met!1od; (8) Casli 0 Accrual Other (specify) ""' H Check .,. (8) if the organization is not 

required to attach Schedule B I Website:"'" \\'W\\. epocharts. org 

J Tax-exempt status (ched. only one) - [8] 501 c 3 0 501 c ~ insert no. 0 4947 a 1 or 0527 (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

K Fo1 m of 01 ganization: 18) Corporation 0 Trust 0 Association 0 Other 
L '\de' lin,,~ 5b, Ge:, :-nd -:-b to tine 9 to determine gross receipts. 1f gross receipts are $200,000 or more, or if total assets 

(Pa·t Ii. colun1n (Bl) are $500,000 or more, file Form 990 instead of Form 990-EZ . ""' $ 1O7, 84 6. 

1@11 Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part I) 

Q) 
:::s 
c: 
Q) 
> 
Q) 

a: 

t/I 
Cl) 
t/I 
c: 
~ 
in 

J!l 
Q) 
t/I 
t/I 
<( ... 
Q) 

z 

Cl1eck if the or anization used Schedule 0 to res ond to an uestion in this Part I .~ 
1 Contributions. gifts, grants. and similar amounts received . 69,024. 

2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracts 2 12,654. 

3 Membership dues and assessments . 3 
4 lnvestrnent income 0. 

Sa Gross an1ount from sale of assets other than inventory i-::S~a:...+---------17:.: 
b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses . L...::5..=b:....J..--------'""""'"'"''• 
c Gain or {loss) from sale of assets other than inventory (subtract line 5b from line 5a) 

6 Gaming and fundraising events: 
a Gross income from gaming (attach Schedule G if greater than 

$15,000) . 6a 
l.-.:~.1..---------+~;:~~l 

b Gross income from fundraising events (not including _$ ________ of contributions 

c 
d 

7a 
b 
c 

8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

20 
21 

from fundraising events reported on line 1) (attach Schedule G if the 
sum of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) . 6b 25 918. 
Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising events ...._6_c_._ ________ L""' 

Net income or (loss) from gaming and fundraising events (add lines 6a and 6b and subtract 
line 6c) 

Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances . i--:.7-=a+--------c:::'; ;,:'.'..J 
Less: cost of goods sold ....._7_b_._ ______ -' 

25,918. 

Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory (subtract line 7b from line 7a) ._7...;.c-+---------
Other revenue (describe in Schedule 0) . . See. L;ine S Stmt. t--8---l..-------=2:...:5:...;0::....·::.... 
Total revenue. Add lines 1, 2, 3, 4, Sc, 6d, 7c, and 8 .,,_ 9 107, 846. 

Grants and similar amounts paid (list in Schedule 0) 1--1..;;.0-+---------
Benefits paid to or for members . l--'-1...;.1-1---------
Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefits 1--'1...;.2+--------
Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors l--'-1...:3--1-_____ 6:::..!., .::2:..:9:....:0:.....::..... 

Occupancy. rent, utilities, and maintenance l--'1....;4:......+ ___ __;3:_2::...!_' ....:.7....:7.....:1::....:._. 

Printing, publications, postage, and shipping r-1_5-+-------=3.....:0:.....7:......:.._. 
Other expenses (describe in Schedule 0) . . See. Line 16. Stmt 1--1_6-+-____ 2_7-'-, 6.::....:::..8..;;;.6...;_. 

Total expenses. Add lines 10 throu h 16 . . .,,_ 17 67, 054. 

E1.cess or (deficit) for the year (subtract line 17 from line 9) .._1.,,.,amr-____ 4_0....:.,_7_9_2_. 
Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 27, column (A)) (must agree with 
end-of-year figure reported on prior year's return) 19 2 9 s, sos . 
Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0) . t--2-0-+-----.:.._ __ 
Net assets or fund balances at end of ear. Combine lines 18 throu h 20 .,,_ 21 336,300. 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. BAA REV 0412 112 t PRO Form 990·EZ (2020) 



Draft - 6/17/2021 

Page 1 
Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design 

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT NOTICE 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
Water System Evaluation and Design 

The Town of East Hampton will be accepting statements of qualifications from those interested in 
providing engineering services to the Town for final evaluation and water system design for the 
interconnection and expansion of water systems. Interested firms should request the response 
instructions and details from the Town Manager, 1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424, 
or via the Town’s website at www.easthamptonct.gov. 

Responses to the Response must be submitted to the Town Manager no later than Noon, July 16, 
2021. 

David E. Cox 
Town Manager 

Agenda Item 10b



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 2 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
Request for Qualifications 

Water System Evaluation and Design 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS                    PAGE NO. 
 
I. GENERAL INFORMATION ..................................................................................3 
 A.  Introduction .........................................................................................................3 
 B.  Background Information ....................................................................................3 
 C.  Terms and Conditions ........................................................................................3 
   
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES ............................................................................................4 
 A.  Specific Services ..................................................................................................4 
 B.  Insurance ..............................................................................................................5 
  
III. SUBMISSION OF RESPONSE ...............................................................................6 
 A.  Response Instructions .........................................................................................6 
 B.  Town Contacts .....................................................................................................8 
 
IV. EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS ....................................................9 
 A.  Evaluation Criteria .............................................................................................9 
 B.  Selection Process ..................................................................................................9 
 C.  Timeline..............................................................................................................10 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
 A.  Non-Collusion Statement ..................................................................................11 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 3 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

 
 
 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
Request for Qualifications 

Water System Evaluation and Design 
 
 

I.   GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
A. INTRODUCTION 
 
The Town of East Hampton is soliciting a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) from qualified 
engineering firms and individual engineers licensed in the State of Connecticut interested in 
providing engineering services to the Town that are expected to include feasibility and cost-benefit 
analysis, conceptual and final design, bidding assistance and construction administration and 
oversight related to water system expansion and development.  Interested parties should submit a 
statement of qualifications in accordance with the requirements and directions herein.   

 
 

B. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Town of East Hampton East Hampton is located in Middlesex County approximately 22 
miles south of Hartford and is equidistant from Boston and New York City. The town is known 
for its rich history, environmental assets, and small town charm and works preserve its rural-
suburban character, farmlands, watershed land, and historic structures by taking a long-term 
view. Enriching quality of life, respecting Town heritage, and building community are among the 
highest priorities 
 
East Hampton covers approximately 36 square miles bounded on the west by the Connecticut 
River and the Town of Portland, on the north by the Town of Glastonbury, on the east by 
Marlborough and Colchester and on the south by Haddam and East Haddam.  The Town’s 
population of is just under 13,000 residents, who enjoy one of Connecticut's largest inland water 
bodies, Lake Pocotopaug, at 512 acres. State parks and forests surround us on our northern, 
southern and western borders, along with the famous Comstock Covered Bridge across the 
Salmon River.  East Hampton maintains over 100 miles of local roads, six miles of sidewalks, 
seven cemeteries and numerous drainage structures.  Portions of the Town are served by a 
wastewater collection and treatment system the treatment portion of which is jointly owned and 
operated by East Hampton and Colchester.  Further, portions of the Town are served by water 
systems that are both privately and publicly owned and operated. 
 
East Hampton has extensively studied the possible interconnection and expansion of municipal 
water systems in the Town.  It currently has a grant through the Department of Public Health and 
submitted an eligibility application for assistance through the Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund to implement the first phase of work.  The initial project is expected to include the 
establishment of one or more new sources of water, the selected development and/or expansion 



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 4 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

of water systems, the interconnection of existing water systems both owned by the Town and 
owned by others and the overall evaluation and expansion of the service area for municipal 
water.  It is anticipated that the initial focus of the project will be centered on the Village Center 
area.  The selected firm will work most closely with the Town Manager, Public Utilities 
Administrator, Town Council and the public. 
 
The Town of East Hampton owns three (3) water systems including the Village Center, Royal 
Oaks and Hampton Woods water systems.  The Village Center water system serves the small 
downtown commercial center of the same name and provides domestic water to approximately 
30 customers of a mostly commercial nature.  The system is served by two (2) ground water 
wells capable of producing approximately 20 gallons per minute in aggregate.  Water in this 
system is treated for PFAS as well as other compounds.  The Village Center is also served by a 
separate water system for fire suppression, which is fed via surface water impounded from an 
area creek and a pump system.   The Royal Oaks system serves a residential neighborhood and 
an elementary school totaling approximately 83 customers of a mostly residential nature.  The 
system is also served by three (3) ground water wells capable of producing approximately 20 
gallons per minute in aggregate at the Royal Oaks water treatment plant and one (1) ground 
water well at Memorial School capable of producing approximately ten (10) gallons per minute.   
Water in this system is also treated for PFAS as well as other compounds.  The Hampton Woods 
system, which serves a residential subdivision that is under development, will ultimately be 
owned by the Town of East Hampton.  However, the development is not yet complete and has 
not reached the agreed upon threshold at which the Town will accept ownership and 
responsibility. 
 
The Town currently holds a well site adjacent to the Connecticut River near the Portland 
boundary (Cobalt Well Field).  This site is within an easement on private property and may have 
daily production capacity in excess of 500,000 gallons. While it presents an opportunity for 
significant reliable quantities of quality water, the wellfield is several miles from the Village 
Center, which is likely the primary focus of the upcoming work.  Other significant sources of 
water have been identified in locations more proximate to the commercial areas but the sites are 
either not secured or are owned and operated by other water systems. 
 
Of initial importance will be the ability of the Town to provide and expand water service to the 
Village Center and surrounding residential areas coupled with the future ability to serve 
additional residential areas and the Rt. 66 commercial corridor.  Ultimately, provision of such 
expanded water services aligns with state goals to reduce the number of regulated, small, single 
building water systems in the community.  
 
 
C.  TERMS AND CONDITIONS      
 
The selected firm or individual will be expected to commence services on or about September 1, 
2021 subject to contract execution.  The Town of East Hampton reserves the right to cancel this 
process at any time should any of the following conditions exist: 
 
• Funds are not appropriated to allow continuance of this contract; 
• The Town, through changes in its requirements or method of operation, no longer has a need 

for this service; 



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 5 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

• The Town is not satisfied with the level of services provided under the contract or the 
engineering firm / engineer fails to comply with any terms and conditions outlined in the 
contract. 

 
Contract Period 
It is the intent to negotiate and award a contract for provision of the initial services outlined herein 
and to utilize the same firm for future aspects of the work should future funding be approved.  It 
is anticipated that an agreement will be negotiated with the selected firm that includes a scope of 
services, related fees and an estimated timeline. 
 
Compensation 
Compensation for services shall be paid monthly in arrears based on services provided and 
allowable incurred costs. However, the Town may consider other payment arrangements. 
 
Engagement Team 
The engineers and the staff assigned to this engagement are considered essential to the work being 
performed.  Substitutions may only be made upon mutual agreement between the Town and the 
engineering firm. 
 
Freedom of Information 
The Town will not be liable for any costs incurred in the preparation of the response to this Request 
for Qualification.  All submissions and materials shall become the property of the Town and will 
not be returned.  Respondents to this RFQ are hereby notified that all submissions and information 
contained therein and attached thereto shall be subject to disclosure under the Freedom of 
Information Act.   
 
 
II.       SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The firm selected after review of the submission received from this RFQ and the subsequent 
interview process will be expected to provide certain initial services and is likely to be retained to 
provide final design and construction services related to Town water systems if the project 
proceeds.  Those providing services to the Town will have a demonstrated expertise in water 
system development and design with accompanying skills and knowledge in feasibility and cost-
benefit analysis and grants and other financing options including, but not limited to, the 
Connecticut Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, federal drinking water grants, the American 
Rescue Plan and other federal or state infrastructure funding that may be available. 
 
With an initial focus on the Village Center, the following items are expected to be addressed during 
the initial phase of the project.   

 
• Evaluation of existing and potential water sources to determine the best long-term 

source(s) for the benefit of the community including feasibility and cost-benefit 
analysis and review of likely permit requirements and determination of estimated costs 
for each potential method. 
 

• Evaluation of existing water systems and potential or anticipated expansion areas 
including feasibility and cost-benefit analysis, preparation of concepts for development 



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 6 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

or enhancement of stand-alone water systems and development of concepts for 
interconnection of existing or future water systems. 

 
• Prepare conceptual plans for developing and connecting new water sources, 

interconnection of water systems and expansion of water systems. 
 

• Prepare updated cost estimates of potential work. 
 

• Assist the Town in understanding available funding opportunities and preparing 
funding applications at both the state and federal level. 
 

• Assist the Town with a public review and evaluation process and, as necessary, a public 
approval process, which may be necessary depending on the method of financing. 

 
 

III. SUBMISSION OF RESPONSE 
 
A. INSTRUCTIONS 
 
By submitting a response to this Request for Qualifications, respondents represent that they have 
thoroughly examined and become familiar with the scope of services outlined in this RFQ and are 
capable of performing the work to achieve the Town’s objectives.  
 
All firms are required to submit six (6) copies plus an electronic version in PDF of their 
qualifications and response to David Cox, Town Manager, 1 Community Drive, East Hampton, 
CT by Friday, July 16 at Noon. The response must be submitted in a sealed envelope or package 
and the outside shall be clearly marked:  
 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS  
WATER SYSTEM EVALUATION AND DESIGN 
  

 
All respondents are required to submit the information detailed below.  Responses shall be 
organized and presented in the order listed below to assist the Town in reviewing and rating 
responses.  Responses should be presented in appropriate detail to thoroughly respond to the 
requirements and expected services described herein and presented and clearly marked in the order 
within this written response. 
 

a. Table of Contents to include clear identification of the material provided by section and 
number. 

b. A letter of transmittal indicating the firm's interest in providing the service and 
summarizing any other information that would assist the Town in making a selection. 
This letter must be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the firm to a contract. 
This letter also must affirm that the firm or their representative has made themselves 
knowledgeable of those matters and conditions in the Town which would influence this 
Request for Qualifications.   



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 7 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

 
c. Name and telephone number of person(s) to be contacted for further information or 

clarification. 

d. A background and qualifications statement including, name of firm/individual, listing 
of engineers along with their discipline and physical office location, and description 
and history of the respondent’s firm and the servicing office. Include, at a minimum, 
as discussion of the unique qualifications that the respondent has regarding this project, 
proposed staffing for this project, resumes and qualifications for personnel that would 
be assigned to this project, the respondent’s familiarity with local laws, regulations, 
permitting and inspecting entities. 

e. A description of the respondent’s capacity to provide the scope of services. Include, at 
a minimum, the number of full-time professional staff your (local) office employs, a 
list of all services required for this project that would be provided in-house by your 
firm, and a list of all services that would be outsourced to 
subconsultants/subcontractors, including the names, qualifications, and licenses of 
proposed subconsultants/subcontractors. If work will be outsourced to 
subconsultants/subcontractors, provide a breakdown of the work, by percentage, 
performed in-house and by each proposed subconsultants/subcontractor.  

f. Include a list of completed projects for which the firm/individual provided professional 
services similar to those considered in this RFQ including evaluation,  design and 
construction administration for during the past five (5) years in the State of Connecticut 
(including project experience with the State and other municipalities).  This list shall 
include the following information: 

1. Name of the city/town 

2. Timeframe of engineering services 

3. Engineering services provided by the firm including description of project, scope 
of services provided and references for each project. 

4. Name, address, and telephone number of the principal contact of the city/town. 

The Town reserves the right to contact these organizations regarding the services 
performed by the firm. 

g. List of personnel to be assigned, including the principal contact engineer.  Please list 
the number of years of experience in their current position, municipalities served and 
their roles in providing services. Also provide their resumes, and document the chain 
of command for these individuals.   

h. Understanding of the Scope of Work.  Include information that explains your firm’s 
ability to perform, implement and administer the services outlined in this RFQ, 
emphasizing experience with other similar municipal clients.  Summarize all areas of 
expertise and experience including the types of services supplied to past and present 
clients.  This information should include areas of specialization and include 
background and experience in such matters as: feasibility and cost-benefit analysis, 



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 8 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

applicable state and municipal law, grant funding, planning and zoning, conflict of 
interest, and construction contracts and services.   

i. A detailed description of how the respondent anticipates supplying water system 
engineering services to the Town including a concept plan for the process to move the 
Town from the current evaluation phase to development of construction drawings and 
specifications.  It is anticipated that a refined and detailed scope of services will be 
developed with the selected firm. 

j. A listing of any grievances filed within the firm, with the outcome, against the 
engineering firm or individual engineer within the past five (5) years. 

k. A concluding statement as to why the respondent is best qualified to meet the needs 
of the Town, including any other information relative to this response. 

l. Signed Non-Collusion Statement (ATTACHMENT A) 
 
 
B. TOWN CONTACTS 
 

1. All technical inquiries relative to this RFQ must be directed in writing to Mr. David 
Cox, Town Manager at 1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT 06424 or 
dcox@easthamptonct.gov.   

 
2. For administrative or procurement questions concerning this response, please contact 

Jeff Jylkka, Finance Director at (860) 267-7548. 
 
All questions, answers, and/or addenda, as applicable will be posted on the Town’s website, faxed, 
and/or emailed to all known respondents.  Responses to requests for more specific contract 
information than is contained in the RFQ shall be limited to information that is available to all 
respondents and that is necessary to complete this process.  The request must be received at least 
five (5) business days prior to the advertised response deadline.   

 
No other East Hampton Town employee, elected official, or evaluation committee member 
should be contacted concerning this RFQ during the response process.  Failure to comply 
with this requirement may result in disqualification. 
 
 
III. EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS 
 
A. EVALUATION CRITERIA        
 
The following factors will be considered by the Town when evaluating responses. 
 

• Accuracy, overall quality, thoroughness and responsiveness to the Town’s 
requirements as summarized herein.  

• Firm’s overall familiarity and experience with municipal water system engineering, 
including demonstrated successful performance on other similar municipal projects; 



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 9 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

with particular emphasis on the qualifications and municipal experience of the engineer 
to serve as the principal contact and other engineers expected to be most involved. 

• Firm’s approach to the  assignment including firm’s demonstrated understanding of the 
Scope of Services and of the customer’s needs and objectives and the creativity 
associated with the approach.   

• Firm’s overall familiarity and experience with funding of similar projects including 
knowledge of state and federally funded projects and related funding sources and their 
requirements and especially the CT Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. 

• Demonstrated flexibility, efficiency and timeliness in providing service to municipal 
clients. 

 
 

B. SELECTION PROCESS        
 
Following the review and evaluation of responses, the Town reserves the right to request certain 
additional information.  The Town Manager, the Public Utilities Administrator and others will 
review the responses based upon the criteria herein.  Based on the review and rating of responses, 
a short list of respondents will be invited to interview with the Town selection committee.  
Respondents are advised that the Town expects to hold interviews of the top rated firms during 
July or August. 
 
The information in this Request for Qualifications will serve as the basis for review and 
recommendation for firm/individual interviews. Respondents are encouraged to address each of 
the factors thoroughly and provide additional information concerning background, experience, and 
qualifications for these services as deemed appropriate. 
 
Based on the results of the interview process, a final scope of services will be developed and a 
professional services agreement with fee structure will be negotiated the top selected respondent.  
Upon completion of a proposed agreement, it will be presented to the Town Council for approval.  
If an acceptable contract agreement cannot be reached, the Town reserves its right to consider 
another qualified respondent based on the evaluation criteria. 
 
This Request for Qualifications does not commit the Town of East Hampton to award a contract 
or to pay any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this request.  All responses 
submitted to this Request for Qualifications become the property of the Town of East Hampton.  
The Town of East Hampton reserves the right to accept or reject any or all responses received as 
a result of this request, to negotiate with the selected respondent(s), the right to extend the contract 
for an additional period, or to cancel in part or in its entirety the Request for Qualifications, and to 
waive any informality if it is in the best interests of the Town to do so. 
 
 
  



Draft - 6/17/2021  

 
Page 10 

Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design  
 
 

C.  TIMELINE 
 
The following schedule is anticipated. The Town intends to adhere to this schedule as closely as possible 
but reserves the right to modify the schedule in the best interest of the Town as required. 
 
 

Publicize RFQ June 28, 2021 
RFQ Due Date July 16, 2021 
Interviews with Top Respondents Week of July 26, 2021 
Award of Contract August 10, 2021 
Contract Effective Date September 1, 2021 

 
  



Draft - 6/17/2021  

Page 11 
Town of East Hampton, CT 
RFQ-Water System Evaluation and Design 

ATTACHMENT A 

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

Water System Evaluation and Design 

NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT 

The company submitting this response certifies that it is being submitted without any collusion, 
communication or agreement as to any matter relating to it with any other respondent or 
competitor.  We understand that this response must be signed by an authorized agent of our 
company to constitute a valid response. 

Date:    ________________________________ 

Name of Company:  ________________________________ 

Name and Title of Agent: ________________________________ 

By (SIGNATURE): ________________________________ 

Address: ________________________________ 

________________________________ 

________________________________ 

Telephone Number: ________________________________ 



MEMORANDUM 
TO: Town Council  
FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager 
DATE: June 17, 2021  
SUBJECT: Town Manager’s Report 

The following information includes follow up from general items that were discussed at 
previous Council meetings as well as updates of a general nature from the departments. The 
items are organized by department and are intended to provide information on activities 
currently being undertaken by the Town’s departments and those matters that are upcoming.  
Not all departments will be represented in each Report. 

Finance 
 The Board of Finance met on Monday, June 14 and approved a mill rate of 34.53 which

is .09 lower than the figure published with the budget and an overall increase of 1.39 or
just over 4%.  The average mill rate increase over the last two years, due to the fact that
there was no mill rate change last year, is just about .69 per year.  The reduction is
possible due to an increase of about $100,000 in funding that will flow to the Town from
the State via the PILOT program, which pays municipalities to provide services to State-
owned properties.

Library 
 The Library Director’s report to the Library Advisory Board for May 2021 is attached to

this Report.

 Kick off for the Summer Reading Program will be held on the Library’s “front patio” on
Friday, June 25 from 3pm to 5pm.  This summer’s program, themed “Tales and Tails,”
encourages reading through various activities, events and prizes directed at all age
groups from children through teens and adults.

Parks and Recreation 
 As noted earlier, the Department received a state grant to support increased summer

youth camp offerings for the children of East Hampton.  Staff is excited to announce the
promotion of Jenna DeMartino from Camp Counselor to Program Leader to provide this
new programming.

 The Town is currently planning to implement a Bio Blast treatment during the week of
June 21.  The recent high temperatures coupled with some heavy rains has created

Agenda Item 11



Town Council - Town Manager’s Report 
June 17, 2021 
Page 2 
 

conditions for Cyanobacteria blooms, which seemed to have occurred in areas of the 
lake.   The BioBlast treatment will take a few days to disperse into the lake.  Residents 
will see the material being distributed from the Town’s contractor’s boats by Tuesday. 
 

 On Saturday, June 19 from 10:00am  to 12:00pm, the Department will host its first 
Secchi Disk monitoring training program at Sears Park. This program will teach the 
volunteers on how to test for turbidity (clarity) of lake water.  Results will be submitted 
to the Town’s lake scientist, NEAR, and used to better understand the impacts of Lake 
Pocotopaug water clarity and how it affects Cyanobacteria.  This program was funded 
from a grant received from Rockfall Foundation. 

 
Public Works 
 Connecticut DOT has completed its repair work to the drainage system in Main Street. 

The work consisted of a repair to a collapsed drainage structure and the addition of a 
catch basin at a junction point.  To facilitate the work, Town DPW crews removed and 
stored the brick pavers from the area.  The sidewalk has been temporarily paved by 
DPW crews to restore walkability to the area. 
 

 Staff is evaluating a project to reinstall the Village Center memorial bricks that were 
removed for the storm water repairs identified above.  In addition to the replacement, 
the project may involve an expanded project to remove and replace other brick 
sidewalks in the area to restore a more level walking surface and provide for a longer 
term installation.  It is anticipated that the expanded project will be considered during 
the summer and implemented as soon as possible.  
 

 The Town’s contractor, Comer Contracting, is tentatively scheduled to begin chip sealing 
the week of June 28. This work should last approximately one week.  The roads to be 
chip sealed are Portland Reservoir Rd, White Birch Rd, Ridge View Drive, Mott Hill Rd, 
and Brack Farm Rd.  A press release will be in the Rivereast and on social media sites.  

  
 DPW crews are continuing work on Edgerton Street. This work will continue through the 

summer and fall until complete. 
 
 Roadside mowing is underway and will continue through the summer months.  

  
 The street sweeper and vactor truck are also making rounds to cleanup from the recent 

st1orm event.  The first focus is areas around Lake Pocotopaug. 



Town Council - Town Manager’s Report 
June 17, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 
Senior Center 
 Since the Senior Center fully re-opened on June 1, more and more participants are attending 

daily.  Each week, staff is adding more groups and programs in conformance with the guidance 
from Chatham Health District.  Based on its guidance, as shown in the attached letter, exercise 
programs and meals will begin again.  With the exception of congregate meals, staff anticipates 
that all activities, at  pre-COVID levels, will be offered by July.  Additional, new programs are also 
being developed for the summer and fall.  Staff and participants are pleased to have people 
back in the Center as all have missed the interactions.   
 

 Staff has started communications with Community Renewal Team (CRT) to reinstate congregate 
meals.  It is anticipated that meals will begin again in fall.   In the meantime, CRT will continue to 
provide frozen Grab and Go Meals on Tuesdays.  
 

 Ten people had a successful trip to Ogunquit, Maine on June 7 through 9 via Friendship tours.  
Staff is working to share additional trips with other senior centers this fall and are making plans 
to kick off National Senior Center month in September with a Food Truck Picnic at Sears Park. 

Youth and Family Services 
 The Department has recently coordinated seven Juvenile Review Board (JRB) cases, of 

which six of the minors will be undertaking individual family therapy using the 
Department’s services.  In order to accommodate the growing case load, the 
Department will be bringing in another student clinician in the upcoming months. 
 

 On Monday, June 21, representatives of Epoch Arts will be coming to the Department to 
survey the space for an art canvas installation that the Department will be sponsoring. 
Using Enhancement Grant funds, the Department will engage Epoch Arts to facilitate an 
art project in the Department’s lobby and therapy rooms. The project will be open to 
youth in the community and will be used to present themes related to emotions, mental 
health and the safety of the therapeutic space. 

 
Town Manager/Other 
 The Town’s COVID rates continue to drop.  As of yesterday, the Town had experienced 

only one additional case in the last week, which brings the transmission rate to the level 
it was when tracking began at the beginning of the pandemic in March 2020.  In order to 
be more fully protected, residents continue to be encouraged to get vaccinated and to 
practice safety protocols if they are not. 
 



Town Council - Town Manager’s Report 
June 17, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 The State Department of Public Health (DPH) in coordination with the Department of 

Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) and the Town will be conducting sampling 
of private residential wells in the area of the Village Center east of Main Street.  The 
goal of the sampling program is to identify wells that may be impacted by pollutants 
from the historic manufacturing facilities in the area and the use of PFAS containing 
products.  In the upcoming weeks, communications will be sent to property owners 
inviting them to participate in the testing. 
 

 Staff is pleased to announce the filling of some key employee vacancies.  Steve 
Fontanella has been hired as the Joint Facilities Director to replace Don Harwood, who is 
retiring in July.  Fontanella, who has several years of private sector experience, will 
begin on July 1 and will provide leadership related to facilities matters on all Town 
facilities whether used for educational or general government purposes.  Additionally, in 
coordination with the Prevention Partnership, Courtney Widrick has been hired to 
facilitate the Town’s youth drug and alcohol use prevention activities as the Prevention 
Coordinator.  The position, which operates out of Youth and Family Services, is funded 
entirely by grant funding received from the Centers for Disease Control and other 
agencies. 
 

DC 
cc:  Management Staff 















Main Office: 240 Middletown Avenue, East Hampton 06424 
Tel: (860) 365-0884 • Fax: (860) 365-0885 

www.chathamhealth.org 

Colchester, East Haddam, East Hampton, Hebron, Marlborough, & Portland 

6/15/2021 

To: Senior Center Directors 
Re: Reopening Guidance for Group Fitness and Communal Dining 

Chatham Health District continues to monitor transmission of COVID-19 and vaccinations in our 
communities. Currently, all towns in our jurisdiction are experiencing very low levels of 
transmission, with 2-week average daily infection rates (1.4 per 100,000 in CHD overall) at 
levels not seen since the Summer of 2020, and vaccination rates among seniors approaching 
100% (at least 1 dose administered). 

In this context of substantially reduced risk of COVID-19 transmission among seniors, 
Chatham Health District no longer recommends that senior centers limit their in-person 
programming and services, including high risk activities like indoor fitness and communal 
dining. Seniors who are not fully vaccinated* or have not recently recovered (in the past 90 
days) from natural infection** should continue to avoid in-person group activities, especially 
high risk activities that take place indoors. 

If people who are not fully vaccinated or have not recently recovered (in the past 90 days) from 
natural infection decide to participate in any in-person activities indoors, they should be 
counseled regarding the risks of COVID-19 transmission and disease, and encouraged to discuss 
vaccination with their doctor or seek the COVID-19 vaccine as soon as possible. Executive Order 
12a requires that any person while indoors in a public place who does not maintain a safe social 
distance of approximately six feet from every other person and who is not fully vaccinated for 
COVID-19 cover their mouth and nose with a mask or cloth face covering. Given the high risk for 
severe COVID-19 among people ages 65+, Senior Centers offering indoor programs or activities 
should consider ways to ensure that people entering their facilities who are not fully vaccinated 
wear masks in accordance with Executive Order 12a. 

Please feel free to reach out to me with any specific questions. 

Sincerely, 

Russell Melmed 
Director of Health 
Chatham Health District 

BOARD MEMBERS 
Andrew Tierney, Chairman 
Stan Soby, Vice Chairman 
Peter Hughes, Treasurer 
Susan Bransfield 
Rosemary Coyle 
Robert Smith 
David Cox 
Kate Morris 

DIRECTOR of HEALTH 
Russell Melmed, MPH 

https://portal.ct.gov/-/media/Office-of-the-Governor/Executive-Orders/Lamont-Executive-Orders/Executive-Order-No-12A.pdf
https://portal.ct.gov/-/media/Office-of-the-Governor/Executive-Orders/Lamont-Executive-Orders/Executive-Order-No-12A.pdf


Main Office: 240 Middletown Avenue, East Hampton 06424 
Tel: (860) 365-0884 • Fax: (860) 365-0885 

www.chathamhealth.org 

* In general, people are considered fully vaccinated:

 2 weeks after their second dose in a 2-dose series, such as the Pfizer or Moderna
vaccines, or

 2 weeks after a single-dose vaccine, such as Johnson & Johnson’s Janssen vaccine

** In general, people who have recovered from COVID-19 disease in the past 90 days are at low 
risk of being re-infected. Seniors and others with compromised immune systems (for example: 
taking immune suppressive drugs after a transplant, chemotherapy for cancer, or having an 
immune suppressive disorder) may be able to be re-infected more easily, and should discuss 
their risk of re-infection with their doctor before resuming high risk activities. 



Agenda Item 13


	RFP Water System Engineering (Final Draft).pdf
	TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT NOTICE
	REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS
	David E. Cox
	I.   GENERAL INFORMATION
	A. INTRODUCTION
	B. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	The Town of East Hampton East Hampton is located in Middlesex County approximately 22 miles south of Hartford and is equidistant from Boston and New York City. The town is known for its rich history, environmental assets, and small town charm and work...
	East Hampton covers approximately 36 square miles bounded on the west by the Connecticut River and the Town of Portland, on the north by the Town of Glastonbury, on the east by Marlborough and Colchester and on the south by Haddam and East Haddam.  Th...
	East Hampton has extensively studied the possible interconnection and expansion of municipal water systems in the Town.  It currently has a grant through the Department of Public Health and submitted an eligibility application for assistance through t...
	The Town of East Hampton owns three (3) water systems including the Village Center, Royal Oaks and Hampton Woods water systems.  The Village Center water system serves the small downtown commercial center of the same name and provides domestic water t...
	The Town currently holds a well site adjacent to the Connecticut River near the Portland boundary (Cobalt Well Field).  This site is within an easement on private property and may have daily production capacity in excess of 500,000 gallons. While it p...
	Of initial importance will be the ability of the Town to provide and expand water service to the Village Center and surrounding residential areas coupled with the future ability to serve additional residential areas and the Rt. 66 commercial corridor....
	The firm selected after review of the submission received from this RFQ and the subsequent interview process will be expected to provide certain initial services and is likely to be retained to provide final design and construction services related to...
	With an initial focus on the Village Center, the following items are expected to be addressed during the initial phase of the project.
	 Evaluation of existing and potential water sources to determine the best long-term source(s) for the benefit of the community including feasibility and cost-benefit analysis and review of likely permit requirements and determination of estimated cos...
	 Evaluation of existing water systems and potential or anticipated expansion areas including feasibility and cost-benefit analysis, preparation of concepts for development or enhancement of stand-alone water systems and development of concepts for in...
	 Prepare conceptual plans for developing and connecting new water sources, interconnection of water systems and expansion of water systems.
	 Prepare updated cost estimates of potential work.
	 Assist the Town in understanding available funding opportunities and preparing funding applications at both the state and federal level.
	 Assist the Town with a public review and evaluation process and, as necessary, a public approval process, which may be necessary depending on the method of financing.
	III. SUBMISSION OF RESPONSE
	A. INSTRUCTIONS
	B. TOWN CONTACTS
	III. EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS

	C.  TIMELINE
	TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON
	REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS




